Lecture 11
Coordination ::
In the previous lecture, we discussed the five basic types of clause structure.
Each part of the structure of a clause can be duplicated (doubled) or added to by Coordination. For example, the subject is duplicated in the following sentence:
Mohammed and I are good friends.
The two parts of the subject in the previous sentence are joined by the conjunction “and”.
Conjunctions are words like “and,” “or,” and “but” which we use to connect grammatical units/elements in a sentence. 
• If we combine more than two parts, we usually separate the parts by commas, using the conjunction to join the last two parts only. 
e.g. Mohammed, Ahmed and I are good friends

Types of conjunctions:
1. Coordinating Conjunctions (coordinators)
These are single-word conjunction, including: “and,” “but” and “or.”
e.g. I want Ahmed and Saleh to come see me.
e.g. I want Ahmed or Saleh to come see me.
e.g. I want Ahmed but not Saleh to come see me.
2. Correlative Coordinating Conjunctions
These are pairs of words, including: “both… and…,” “either… or…,” neither… nor…,” “not only… but also…”
e.g. I want both Ahmed and Saleh to come see me.
e.g. I want either Ahmed or Saleh to come see me.
e.g.I want neither Ahmed nor Saleh to come see me.
e.g. I want not only Ahmed but also Saleh to come see me.
3. Subordinating Conjunctions (subordinators)
4. Correlative Subordinating Conjunctions
We will talk more about the last two types when we discuss Subordination in Lectures 12 and 13.
Exercise ::
Choose the type of conjunction in the sentences below:
a. Coordinating Conjunction 
b. Correlative Coordinating Conjunction
1. My brother and sister went to Dammam.
2. They are both polite and friendly.
3. I not only like swimming but also diving.
4. I like swimming but not diving. 
Coordination ::
We can compound/coordinate any level of constituents (grammatical units) - words, phrases and clauses.
• Coordination of Words
Coordination can link two or more words of the same word class as in the following examples:
Nouns:
e.g. Football and basketball are my favorite sports.
Adjectives:
e.g. My friend Khaled is funny and intelligent.
Adverbs:
e.g. We must finish our work both quickly and efficiently.



• Coordination of Phrases 
Two or more phrases of the same type can also be linked together through coordination as in the following examples:
Noun Phrases
e.g. The old man and the young boy crossed the street.
Verb Phrases:
e.g. Many of the grammatical terms must be studied and will come in the exam.
Adjective phrases:
e.g. The topics are very interesting and really useful.
Adverbials:
e.g. You can wash your clothes by hand or in the washing machine.

· Compound Sentences :: 
• Coordination of Clauses 
A compound sentence has two or more clauses which are linked by a coordinator.
• All of the clauses in compound sentences are coordinate. In other words, they are of equal rank. None of them are dependent on (part of) another clause. They are all independent clauses.
The following are examples of compound sentences:
e.g. 1. Everyone was in the room and the doors had been closed.
e.g. 2. Everyone was in the room, the doors had been closed and latecomers had to wait outside.
e.g. 3. Some students didn’t do the homework and the teacher knew, but he didn’t say anything.
e.g. 4. Either he didn’t bring the book, or someone took it from him.
e.g. 5. I’m selling my car and (I’m) buying a new one.
e.g. 6. Mohammed is going on a trip for a few days, but (he) will be back before Saturday.
e.g. 7. He may have received the letter but (he may have) forgotten to reply.
• As seen in examples 5, 6 and 7, when the subjects of the two clauses refer to the same person or thing, the second subject can be deleted. We can also delete the second verbal group if it is the same.

Exercise :: 
Decide whether the following sentences are:
a. simple sentences	b. compound sentences
1. My neighbor and his family are going on a trip.
2. My neighbor is going on a trip but his family are not going with him.
3. Either I lost my wallet or someone stole it.
4. The wallet was either lost or stolen.

Decide whether the subject in the second clause is:
a. Optional (can be deleted)  b. Obligatory (cannot be deleted) 
1. My neighbor is going on a trip and his family are going with him too.
2. My neighbor is going on a trip and he will take his family with him.
3. Sara will study hard for the exam, and she will try to get high grades.
4. Sara will study hard for the exam, and Maha will do the same.
انتهى...






Lecture 12
Subordination :: 
In Lecture 1 we said that sentences can be divided into simple, compound and complex sentences. We discussed simple sentences in detail in previous lectures, especially Lecture 10, and compound sentences in Lecture 11. In this lecture, we will discuss complex sentences.
A complex sentence has two or more clauses joined by a subordinating conjunction. At least one of the clauses is subordinate to a main clause.
A main clause (also known as an independent clause) is a clause that can stand alone as a complete sentence.
A subordinate clause (also known as a dependent clause) is a clause that cannot stand alone as a complete sentence.
• A clause can be subordinate by being able to do one of the following:
1. replace an NP in the main clause
e.g. Everyone could see it.
Everyone could see (that) he was frightened.
The subordinate clause “that he was frightened” is a noun clause. It functions as the object of the verb “see”.
2. modify an NP in the main clause
e.g.
I often see my old school friends.
I often see friends who were at school with me.
The subordinate clause “who were at school with me” is called a relative clause. It functions as a modifier of the NP “friends”.
3. replace an adverbial in the main clause
e.g.
I met Ahmed twenty years ago.
I met Ahmed when I was at school.
The subordinate clause “when I was at school” is an adverbial clause of time. It functions as an adjunct in the main clause “I met Ahmed.”
A subordinate clause is usually introduced by one of the following:
1. a subordinating conjunction, e.g. when or that                           2. a relative pronoun, e.g. who, which, whose
A subordinate clause is usually introduced by one of the following:
1. a subordinating conjunction, e.g. when or that
2. a relative pronoun, e.g. who, which, whose
Compare:
1. a. He was frightened. (Independent Clause)
1. b. that he was frightened (Subordinate/Dependent Clause)
2. a. I was at school. (Independent Clause)
2. b. when I was at school (Subordinate/Dependent Clause)
Examples “1.a” and “2.a” are independent clauses. They are complete sentences by themselves. 
Examples “1.b” and “2.b” are subordinate clauses. They are not complete sentences on their own. A main clause must be added to “1.b” and “2.b” if we want to make a complete sentence from them.

Exercise ::
Decide whether the underlined clause is:
a. dependent	b. independent
 
1. It was obvious to everyone that he wanted to leave.
2. He wanted to leave and this was obvious to everyone.
3. My friends came to visit me when I was in Dammam.
4. My friends came to visit me, but I was in Dammam.
Types of Subordinate Clauses 
1. Noun Clauses
2. Relative Clauses
3. Adverbial Clauses
4. Other (Conditional Clauses, Result Clauses, Purpose Clauses… etc.)
We will take a look at each of these types in the following sections starting with noun clauses.
Noun Clauses :: 
We can divide noun clauses into that-clauses and wh-clauses. A that-clause begins with “that” and a wh-clause begins with a wh-question word, e.g. what, who.
A. That-clauses
A that-clause can have four of the functions of the NP. It can be:
1. Subject of a Verb in another clause
e.g. That the driver could not control his car is obvious. 
(=It is obvious.)
Note: “That” is obligatory in this sentence. We cannot delete it.
2. Object of a Verb in another clause
e.g. Everyone could see (that) he was frightened. (=Everyone could see it.)
Note: “That” is optional in this sentence. We can delete it.
3. Complement of Subject +BE
e.g. The truth is (that) he was very shy. (= The truth is this.)
Note: “That” is optional in this sentence. We can delete it.
e.g. The man says, “The road is closed.” (direct speech using quotation marks)
The man says (that) the road is closed. (indirect speech using a that-clause)
B. Wh-clauses
A wh-clause can have four of the functions of an NP. It can be:
1. Subject of another clause
e.g. What caused the accident is a complete mystery. (= It is a complete mystery.)
2. Object of a verb in another clause
No one knows what caused the accident. (= No one knows it.)
3. Complement of Subject +BE
The question is what caused the accident. (=The question is this.)
4. Object of a preposition
This depends on what you want. (=This depends on it.)

Exercise:: 
What is the function of the underlined clause?
a. subject b. object c. complement d. appositive
1. The fact is that no one could do it.
2. What he discovered was important for science.
3. The fact that no one could do it disappointed me.
4. Everyone knows that he made a great discovery.
5. The workers rely on what the manager has to say.

انتهى ...




Lecture 13
Relative Clauses
In Lecture 12, we discussed subordination and the types of subordinate clauses. We talked in detail about the first type of subordinate clauses: noun clauses. In this lecture, we will cover other types of subordinate clauases in more detail.
2. Relative Clauses
A relative clause is a clause which mainly modifies a noun phrase. It usually begins with a relative pronoun: “who”, “whom”, “whose”, “which” and “that”.
e.g. 1. The car which he owns is very old.
(The car is very old. He owns the car.)
Sometimes the relative pronoun can be deleted (zero relative pronoun), but it still exists as a grammatical position in the clause.
e.g. 2. The car he owns is very old.
In example 1, the relative pronoun “which” is the object of the verb “owns”. Similarly, in example 2, the zero relative pronoun is the object of the verb “owns”.
The relative pronoun points back to the head of the noun phrase modified by the relative clause. The head of the NP is called the antecedent of the relative pronoun.
e.g. The man who called us yesterday has come to meet you. (the pronoun “who” points back to the head of the NP “man”. “Man” in this sentence is called an antecedent.)
• The Use of Relative Pronouns:
A. Personal Relative Pronouns
The personal relative pronouns “who” and “whom” are used with human antecedents.
e.g. 1. There is a man outside who wants to see you. (There is a man outside. The man wants to see you.)
e.g. 2. Ahmed, who/whom I told you about yesterday, is here. (Ahmed is here. I told you about Ahmed yesterday.)
B. Non-Personal Relative Pronouns
The non-personal relative pronoun “which” is used to talk about animals, objects, places, ideas… etc.
e.g.
I want a watch which is waterproof.
3. Personal and Non-Personal Relative Pronouns
The relative pronouns “that” and “whose” are used with both personal and non-personal antecedents.
e.g. 1. There is the driver that was speeding. (“that” used with the personal antecedent “driver”)
e.g. 2. There is the car that was speeding. (“that” used with the non-personal antecedent “car”)
Note: “Whose” gives the idea of possession.
e.g. 1. The man whose car you borrowed wants to see you. (The man wants to see you. You borrowed his car.)
e.g. 2. We saw the castle whose walls were made of rocks. (We saw the castle. Its walls were made of rock.)
•In the following section, we will talk about the third type of subordinate clauses: adverbial clauses.
Exercise:: 
Which of the subordinate clauses in each of the following sentences is a relative clause?
a. relative clause	b. not a relative clause
1. The machine which makes plastic bottles is broken.
2. The manager is upset about what the worker told him.
3. The problem is that he didn’t oil the machine.
4. The worker that forgot to oil the machine is speaking with the manager.
5. They called a technician who could fix the machine.
)Adverbial Clauses(
3. Adverbial Clauses
Similar to adverbs and adverb phrases, adverbial clauses allow us to talk about time, place and manner.
e.g.
I met Ahmed in 2005. (adverbial phrase of time)
I met Ahmed when I was travelling. (adverbial clause of time.)
He parked his car here. (adverb of place)
He parked his car where there is a parking sign. (adverbial clause of place)
He drives carefully. (adverb of manner)
He drives as his father did. (adverbial clause of manner)
Note: The words “when”, “where” and “as” in the previous sentences are subordinate conjunctions.
Adverbial clauses also have functions similar to adverbs and adverb phrases. For example, the adverbial clause in the following sentence is an adjunct:
e.g. I met Ahmed when I was travelling. (The adverbial clause “when I was travelling” is an adjunct.)
Compare: I met Ahmed in 2005. (The adverbial phrase “in 2005” is an adjunct.)
• In the next section, we will look briefly at examples of some other types of subordinate adverbial clauses.

Other Adverbial 
Subordinate Clauses
4. Other Adverbial Subordinate Clauses
Please return my book if you finish reading it. (Conditional Clause)
Ahmed is quicker than I am. (Comparison Clause)
I couldn’t open the door because I used the wrong key. (Reason Clause)
He closed the windows so that he wouldn’t hear the noise outside. (Purpose Clause)

انتهى ...




Lecture 14
Review of 
Previous Lectures

Form and Function
An important distinction that we talked about in our lectures is the difference between form and function of constituents.
The term constituent is used to refer to words, phrases and clauses.
First, we will look at the forms of constituents.
Form
Some of the forms we discussed in our lectures include:
verb, verb phrase, noun phrase, noun, nominal group, pronoun pronominal group, noun clause, determiner, article, demonstrative,  preposition, prepositional phrase, adjective, adjective phrase, adverb, adverb phrase, adverbial clause… etc. 
)Sample Questions(
Which of the following is a pronoun?
a. man		b. talk		c. he		d. nice
Which of the following is NOT an article?
a. them		b. the		c. a		d. an
Function
Some of the functions we discussed in our lectures include:
subject, verb (predicator), direct object, indirect object, object of preposition, complement of subject+ BE, complement of object, complement of adjective, adjunct, appositive, head, postmodifier and premodifier.

Sample Questions :: 
What is the function of the underlined phrase?
“The students are attending a lecture.”
a. subject  b. direct object  c. indirect object  d. complement
“He will come tomorrow.” The adjunct in this sentence is:
a. He		b. will		c. come		d. tomorrow

Definitions
Some of the terms we defined in our lectures include:
Grammar, sentence, statement, question, exclamation, command, intransitive verbs, monotransitive verbs, ditransitive verbs, modifier, proper noun, common noun, animate, inanimate, count noun, mass noun, collective noun… etc.

)Sample Questions(
Nouns which cannot be preceded by “one” and have no plural form are called:
a. count  noun		c. mass  noun	
b. countable noun		d. collective noun
The name of someone or something that is usually imagined to be unique is called:
a. proper noun	c. common noun		
b. generic noun	d. collective noun

Classifications
Many of the terms we covered have different classifications. For example:
We classified verbs into: helping verbs and main verbs.
We also classified verbs into: transitive and intransitive.
We classified pronouns into: personal pronouns, reflexive pronouns and indefinite pronouns.
)Sample Questions(
Which of the underlined pronouns in the following sentences is a reflexive pronoun.
a. He is here.		c. I did the homework myself.
b. This car is mine.	d . Everyone came on time.
Which of the following is NOT one of the types of pronouns?
a. personal pronouns		c. reflexive pronouns
b. generic pronouns		d. indefinite pronouns

Rules
We covered a number of grammatical rules in our lectures. The following is an example
The subordinating conjunction “that” is obligatory in a sentence when the subordinate that-clause is a subject. For example, we cannot delete “that” in the following sentence:
“That the driver could not control his car is obvious.”
 
)Sample Questions(
Which of the following that-clauses has an obligatory subordinating conjunction.
a. That they had an exam last week was reason enough for the students not to go on the trip.
b. The students didn’t know that Ahmed was not notified about the time of the exam.
c. The reason is that no one told him about it.
d. They all noticed that he did not attend the exam.

General Inquiries
Finite Verbs ,,
• Finite verbs show tense, person and number. 
• To see whether a verb is finite or not try to change the tense, person or number in a sentence.
e.g 1. He is here today. He was here yesterday. (tense)
e.g. 2. He is walking. I am walking. (person)
e.g. 3. The child has slept already. 
The children have slept already. (number)

Heads and Modifiers
• Before you identify the head and the modifier, you need to identify the phrase first.
e.g. The old man has an appointment with his doctor.
In this sentence, we have 3 noun phrases, 1 verb phrase and 1 prepositional phrase. The noun phrases in the previous example are: “the old man”, “an appointment” and “his doctor”. The verb phrase is the simple verb “has” The prepositional phrase is the phrase “with his doctor” You’ll notice that the noun phrase “his doctor” is part of the prepositional phrase. It is the object of the preposition.
• An easy way that we can use sometimes to identify many noun phrases is to try to change them to pronouns. For example, we can change the previous sentence to:
    The old man has an appointment with his doctor.
	He has this with him.
• Now that we identified the noun phrases, we need to identify the head and the modifiers. The head is a necessary element of the phrase, and the modifiers are optional elements that add to the meaning of the head or limit it. 
In the previous example, the heads of each noun phrase are “man”, “appointment” and “doctor”. The modifiers include: “the,” ”old,” “an” and “his.”
• All these modifiers come before the heads of each phrase, so we call them premodifiers.
Note: The head is what determines the type of the phrase. The head of a noun phrase is a noun or a pronoun (e.g. the man, we all). The head of a prepositonal phrase is a preposition (e.g. with the doctor). The head of an adjective phrase is an adjective (e.g. very good).
e.g. 2. The headmaster of the school is here.
		He is here.
The head in this noun phrase is “headmaster”. The modifier “the” is a premodifier because it comes before the head. The prepositional phrase “of the school” comes after the head and functions as a modifier, so we call it a postmodifier.
Note: “The school” is another noun phrase in this sentence. It is the object of the preposition “of” and also part of the first noun phrase “the headmaster of the school”.

Complements
e.g. 1. The book is on the desk. (complement of subject)
e.g. 2. Ahmed is very good at Mathematics. (complement of adjective)
In example 1, we only have one complement: “on the desk”. This is the complement of the subject +BE.
In example 2, we have two complements. The first complement: “ very good at mathematics” is an adjective phrase, and it is the complement of the subject +BE. The second complement “at mathematics” is a prepositional phrase, and it is the complement of the adjective “good”.

انتهى ..
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